
Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 5, 2011 1 
 

POLSON CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
CITY HALL – CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 5, 2011, 7:00 P.M. 
 
ATTENDANCE:  City Commissioners:  John Campbell, Judy Preston, Elsa Duford, Fred 
Funke, and Commission President Mike Lies presiding.  City Attorney James Raymond 
Present.  Commission Todd Erickson, Mayor Pat DeVries and City Manager Todd 
Crossett absent.  Others present:  Carol Daniels, Peter Daniels, Murat Kalinyaprak, Rory 
Horning, Carmine Mowbray, Dan Morrison, Diane Speer, Andrew Speer, Cheryl Wolfe, 
Ken Siler, Sharon Fulton, Bob Fulton, and Don McMillan.   
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order and the Pledge of Allegiance was 
recited. 
 
APPROVAL OF PROPOSED AGENDA:  Commissioner Preston moved to approve the 
agenda with the addition of an item she had requested to discuss an attached letter written 
by Bob Fulton discussing the impact fees on Mike Maddy’s mansion property.  City 
Attorney Raymond advised that she could make the motion to approve the proposed agenda and 
add that item to the next meeting, not the current one because it was not publicly noticed.  
Commissioner Lies questioned if that included discussion items.  Commissioner Duford 
expressed that she thought they could add items to the agenda.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented 
to go ahead and do it.  Commissioner Preston expressed that she wanted to discuss this old 
business the meeting before the expiration of her term, which only included one more meeting.  
Commissioner Preston withdrew her agenda item.  Commissioner Preston moved to 
approve the agenda as proposed, seconded by Commissioner Funke.  Rory Horning asked if 
the agenda item request was turned in prior to the deadline.  Commissioner Preston replied not 
exactly, she had accidentally sent it to the City Manager’s personnel email and he had not seen it 
until Tuesday.  She added that she guessed that maybe the agenda was too full.  Murat 
Kalinyaprak commented that in the past the Mayor had made a motion to put something on the 
agenda and the City Attorney had said that it was okay to vote on an item added to the agenda if 
it didn’t involve public spending.  The motion carried 4-1, Commissioner Duford opposed.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

A.  NOVEMBER 16-30 CLAIMS 
Commissioner Funke moved to approve the consent agenda, item A, seconded by 
Commissioner Preston.   Commissioner Lies inquired about the water departments payments to 
Steve Jensen, and commented that he thought they had enough personnel and equipment to not 
need to hire out.  Commissioner Duford inquired if he was recommending the claim be held.  
Commissioner Lies replied that he was not.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 21, 2011:  Commissioner 
Preston moved to approve the minutes, seconded by Commissioner Campbell.  
Commissioner Lies noted corrections to pages 4 and 5.  Commissioner Preston noted corrections 
to page 7.  Commissioner Duford noted corrections to page 6.  The motion carried 
unanimously.   
 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 5, 2011 2 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS OF SIGNFICANT INTEREST TO THE PUBLIC 
NOT ON THE AGENDA:  Bob Fulton commented that he had written a letter to the 
Commission regarding the impact fees assessed to Mike Maddy’s property and the Ridgewater 
Subdivision’s properties.  He added that ordinance 624 to calculate impact fees was 
straightforward.  He referred to page 5 of the previous meeting minutes, where the City Manager 
referred to the property as 26,000 and the letter Mr. Fulton had written had incorrect calculation 
using a 24,000.  He commented that Superintendent Porrazzo had referred to the connection as 
an 1½” service, but at City Hall records show ¾”.   He commented that another mistake in his 
letter was that he didn’t include the admin service charge fee.  He said calculations with those 
changes left the fire service at $14,820 and the 1½” service line with $5,061 for sewer and 
$10,135, plus the 5% admin fee totaling $32,357 for the impact fees.  He commented that 
building permits could not be issued unless the impact fees had been paid.  He commented on the 
calculation using ¾” being used because there were four bathrooms, but that depended on the 
bathroom facilities.  He commented that there was a question as to whether the City Attorney 
had paid impact fees, the reason given at City Hall was that there was prior preliminary plat 
approval.  He read from the impact fee ordinance regulations and commented that there appeared 
to be no exemption for impact fees on that property.  He commented that another letter he wrote 
asked the question of how many lots were on COS 6884, and could find five legal parcels.  He 
referred to the Mayors comments the previous meeting in regards to that survey, and he felt that 
the City was responsible for the work coming out of City Hall.  He had inquired to the Mayor to 
find out why they couldn’t define the 8 parcels.  He commented that she made comments that 
these things never go away, and he felt that they did not go away because they were never given 
credible answers.  He directed attention to Page 6, on Commissioner Duford’s comments that the 
street connected to the mansion to the cul-de-sac not being up to City standards and the City 
Managers response that he had no proof that it was not.  He commented that the road didn’t even 
have curbs.  He commented that until they get answers to questions that make sense and are 
defendable they were going to continue.  Commissioner Duford expressed agreement.  She 
commented that she questions not getting complete or accurate information.  She read from 
minutes from October 19, 2009 annexation of Lakeview Knolls where she had asked for 
clarification on the access.  She directed attention to various maps for the area that appeared 
contradictory.  She questioned how different people were given access to View Point Drive from 
the County when it was private drive. She commented that with the information they’re given the 
can’t make good decisions, then being told that mistakes could not be corrected and to move 
forward was like pretending it doesn’t exist, while the people affected, the Duncans, have no 
solutions. She didn’t feel the issue was over and they had not reached a solution.  She didn’t 
think as a Council they could shut their eyes and hope it goes away, she felt they needed to make 
it right for the people subject to the problem if it was done wrong in the first place.  Bob Fulton 
asked for clarification on what the correct impact fee for the mansion and was it collected.  He 
commented that it had been 5 weeks, and they still don’t know if they paid.  He recommended 
that someone independently look over the calculation.  Commissioner Lies commented that as 
far as he knew none of the Commission had been given an answer.  Commissioner Duford felt 
from what was said before was that there was no record that the fee was paid, and she asked how 
they find out.  Commissioner Preston commented that she made a request for the agenda last 
week based on the letter Bob Fulton had written.  She questioned what was the size of the service 
connection.  John Campbell advised that he had been told the meter was ¾” and the service 
connection was 1 ½”, and the calculation was based on the meter, not the service line.  



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 5, 2011 3 
 

Commissioner Preston commented that either way the impact fees should have been paid prior to 
the building permit being issued.  He agreed.  Commissioner Lies commented that he had a ¾” 
service line and a 2” fire line, he did not know what was right, everyone gave a different answer.  
Commissioner Preston moved to have an item on the next agenda to answer her 6 questions 
in regards to these issues.  Commissioner Duford seconded the motion.  City Attorney 
Raymond advised that they could not take a vote unless it had been noticed.  Murat Kalinyaprak 
commented that yes they could they’d done it before, go ahead and do it.  City Attorney 
Raymond commented that they could take legal advice from Mr. Kalinyaprak or they could take 
legal advice from the guy who went to law school.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented that he was 
contradicting himself and they could prove it.  City Attorney Raymond commented that he had 
suggested to Commissioner Preston to make her motion on agenda item 2 to do that very thing, 
that would have been fine.  Commissioner Preston suggested they have discussion to find if the 
Commission had interest on putting it on the next agenda.  Commissioner Lies commented 
definitely.  Don McMillan asked Commissioner Preston to read the remaining questions.  
Commissioner Preston replied that she would and her questions were referenced from the letter 
Bob Fulton had written.  Her 2nd question was whether the building permits and service 
connections given prior to the impact fees being paid and was that proper procedure.  The 3rd 
question was do the City staff, including Official Weaver and City Manager Crossett believe that 
the $5,700 impact fee assessment was correct, if not what would the reasonable estimate be.  The 
4th questions was were the credits given for fire protection done according to ordinance 624, was 
the procedure followed.  The 5th question was in regards to the system improvements being 
accepted into the City, was ordinance 624 followed for the mansion property.  The 6th question 
was what could be done if the impact fees had not been calculated correctly.  She commented 
that this for her, had started with the road that lead past the Duncans’, and it had led to the impact 
fees.  She commented that she didn’t want the impact fees levied unfairly or inconsistently and 
she didn’t think they should sweep it under the carpet.  Commissioner Campbell expressed 
agreement with her discussion, but pointed out she had been given the chance to put it on the 
next meeting.  Commissioner Duford referred to the meeting when the mansion had been 
approved and how it had been full of supporters.  She commented that it was full, but it was 
almost entirely Black Mountain Software Employees.   Commissioner Preston commented that’s 
all you could go by.  Commissioner Campell commented that he didn’t see why Commissioner 
Preston couldn’t get it on the agenda in the proper process at the next meeting.  Commissioner 
Lies commented that it was high time they got it taken care of it. Commissioner Funke 
commented that all 6 of those questions needed answered; the service line was a big thing.  
Commissioner Preston advised that she would resubmit that as an agenda request.  Don 
McMillan inquired who the person responsible for answering those questions was.  
Commissioner Lies advised that he was unsure.  Don McMillan suggested they find out so they 
can ensure that the questions get directed to the right person.  Commissioner Preston commented 
on her agenda request she had listed the City Manager as presenting, she assumed they would 
have the answers to the questions.  Don McMillan inquired to the City Attorney who they, the 
Commission should direct the questions towards.  City Attorney Raymond advised that it 
involved a number of departments, but the City Manager would be the one to give the questions 
to.  He added that the City Manager was looking into it.  Commissioner Lies commented that he 
hoped that the questions were answered truthfully so they would get some straight answers 
instead of the constant run around they had been getting.  Commissioner Campbell noted that 
these minutes would reflect this conversation to make sure they went through the proper 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 5, 2011 4 
 

procedure to get an item on the agenda.  Commissioner Funke commented that the people 
involved needed to be at the meetings so they could answer the questions as they ask them.  He 
felt that they weren’t getting anywhere with one answer here and one answer there.  He 
commented that they needed them to be accountable.  Bob Fulton called attention to page 10 of 
the ordinance, establishing the impact review board, and questioned which two Commissioners 
were serving on it.  City Attorney Raymond commented that that ordinance was amended during 
Jay Henry’s term as City Manager, now under the Charter the City Manager forms committees.  
Commissioner Lies felt they had enough support to get this on the next agenda to get some 
answers.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented that as a citizen he was bothered that they didn’t seem 
to have a representative form of government anymore.  He commented that the people on the 
Commissioner were unable to put things on the agenda, apparently the City Manager had taken it 
upon himself to abuse his power and deny agenda requests.  He commented that according to the 
Charter his involvement with the agenda is clerical, assembling and presenting it to the 
Commission.  He commented that the Commission is allowed to set its own agenda.  He 
commented he understood that Commissioners had tried to put other items on the agenda and 
were denied.  He commented that he would like to see all of those items on the agenda.  He 
commented that it might be a long agenda, but the Commissioners had the right to put what they 
wanted on the agenda, but they had been blocked for months apparently an effort to play for time 
until they were out of the Commission.  He commented that he would like to see all of the denied 
agenda requests on the next meeting agenda.  Rory Horning commented that he was glad there 
was a little bit of discussion.  He asked Commissioner Preston if she remembered being told by a 
staff member that in order to make changes in procedure that the City Charter must be amended 
by the public.  He commented that they had just been told that under the first City Manager that 
an amendment had been done but not by a vote of the people.  He commented that either they 
had a problem with how the charter was administered or they as elected representatives could 
work on their charter and represent the community properly.  He commented that it was a 
pleasure to see Mr. Fulton because in the past they had shot the messenger and they had bleed 
profusely in that room and it was nice to see him able to deliver a message.  Murat Kalinyaprak 
commented that this was an unusual agenda, since there was a basically empty agenda.  He 
directed attention to how many people attended the meeting although there was nothing on the 
agenda.  He commented that it should send them the message that they were watching, they were 
networking, they were talking about these things and they weren’t going to let go.  They would 
keep coming back even after the new Commission was seated.   
 
Peter Daniels commented that he was bothered by a check that was received by the City for an 
impact fee, but the fee was waived and the check returned.  He commented that any official that 
received that check that should not be deposited into a bank, should take it to be deposited at 
City Hall in a suspense account, with a photoset of the check so it could be seen by the public 
and Commission.  He commented that he didn’t want to hear about a check written to the City 
that only one person could say existed.  He commented that he had no problem with waived fee’s 
checks being returned, but there should be lawful evidence that the check did exist.  
Commissioner Duford expressed agreement adding that there wasn’t any record as far as she 
knew.  Bob Fulton requested that one Commissioner make an agenda request to get a legal 
definition of the 8 parcels that exist in COS 6884.  Andrew Spear questioned when the impact 
fees and unreceipted checks had taken place.  Commissioner Preston commented that the impact 
fees should have been done April-August 2009, and the check they were referring to was from 6 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes December 5, 2011 5 
 

weeks ago.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented that lately information requests responses seemed to 
have stopped.  He commented that he had been waiting three months for an answer to why the 
City did not go after collecting from Westana.  He had several other information requests that 
were unanswered from the last few months.  He commented that it had just shut off.   
 
Sharon Fulton inquired about the result of the City Manager review meeting the previous week.  
Commissioner Lies agreed.  City Attorney Raymond advised that it was a personnel manner.  
Sharon Fulton asked what that meant, if they would review him again in 6 more months.  
Commission Lies advised that was true.  Andrew Spear inquired if the City Manager wage was 
paid by the citizens, shouldn’t they have access to that information.  City Attorney Raymond 
advised that it was a personnel matter, like all employees evaluations.  He added that it came to 
the right of the person and he could certainly ask Mr. Crossett.   
 
Cheryl Wolfe commented that she was an accountant, and having checks brought to the City that 
weren’t cash receipted was unacceptable.  She commented that there was more responsibility for 
governmental entities, because it was the tax payers money, it shouldn’t be heard of that a cash 
receipt is not deposited immediately.  She commented that she didn’t believe there wasn’t a 
policy for cash receipts, she had paid the City a few times and there was always someone there to 
take and receipt their money.  She commented that she’s known some people under threat of dire 
consequences if they didn’t pay the City what they were supposed to pay.  She commented that 
she thought there was a policy and it seems that it wasn’t followed.  She commented that 
everyone makes mistakes, but if there was collusion, where if someone told someone not follow 
the policy and the policy wasn’t followed because of people working together not to follow cash 
receipt policy. She commented that that was a problem, and she believed a lot of confidence had 
been lost in City government due this cash receipt problem.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 

_____________________________________ 
Commission President Mike Lies      

_________________________________ 
Attest:  Kala Parker, City Clerk 


